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TO: CITY COUNCIL DATE: OCTOBER 15,2007 

FROM: CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: ADDITIONAL HISTORIC PROPERTY CONTRACTS 
(MILLS ACT) FOR 2007 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Acknowledge that authorizing additional Historic Property Contracts is 
categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (§I  5308, 
Class 8 exemption, Actions by Regulatory Agencies for Protection of the 
Environment); 

2. Acknowledge that the Historic Property Contracts program, as adopted by City 
Council in 2002 and amended in 2007, set annual limits on the number of 
contracts (maximum of 20 single-family residential properties each year and 
three multi-family residential, commercial, or industrial properties each year) and 
unrealized revenue to the City ($75,000 annually, or $25,000 for any one 
property); 

3. Acknowledge that the Historic Property Contracts program allows for City Council 
to approve addit i~nal contracts beyond these limits; 

4. Acknowledge that the unrealized revenues have been substantially less than 
anticipated (average of $1 8,000 per year); and 

5. Authorize the City Manager to enter into six Historic Property Contracts for multi- 
family and commercial properties in 2007 (calendar year) 

BACKGROUND 

On October 14, 2002, the City Council authorized a Historic Property Contracts (Mills 
Act) program to support reinvestment in designated historic buildings (individual 
landmarks or those in historic districts) through property tax reductions. The program 
adopted by the City Council originally provided for a maximum of ten single-family 
residential and three multi-family or non-residential Historic Property Contracts per year. 
After three successful years with increasing numbers of Historic Property Contract 
applications, the Council increased the maximum number of single-family contracts to 
20 in July 2007. The program further limits the loss of the City's tax revenue from the 
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Historic Property Contracts to $75,000 per calendar year (for the new contracts issued 
during that year). 

This year, staff received 20 applications for single family contracts and six applications 
for commerciallmulti-family properties. Pursuant to 51 7.62.1 30(4)(b)(2) of the Zoning 
Code, Council action is required to authorize approval of additional contracts beyond 
the limits established in the Code. Staff is recommending that the Council authorize 
three additional commercial/multi-family contracts for the 2007 program. A codified 
increase in commercial/multi-family contracts will be proposed with the next round of 
Zoning Code amendments. 

When a property owner submits a complete Historic Property Contract application, a 
site visit is conducted to assess present conditions and determine an appropriate 
rehabilitationlmaintenance plan. (The owner is contractually obligated to follow this plan 
and yearly inspections ensure compliance.) Under the Mills Act (state) regulations, 
signed contracts are recorded with the County Recorder by the end of each year to 
receive assessment by the County Tax Assessor. Property tax reductions on contracts 
signed in a given year are not reflected on the tax rolls until the following year. 

Analysis 

Since 2003, the City of Pasadena has entered into Historic Property Contracts with 57 
owners of designated historic properties. Staff has analyzed data from contracts signed 
in 2003-2005. As expected, reductions in property taxes were substantial, with tax 
valuations reduced from 16% to 85%. Last year, the total unrealized revenue to the City 
from property taxes collected on Historic Property Contract enrolled properties was 
$54,508 (see attachment). The total unrealized revenue for the contracts approved in 
2005 only was $35,248. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Authorizing an expansion of the Historic Property Contracts program from three to six 
multi-family residential/commercial properties for 2007 will have a marginal effect on 
revenues to the City. The increased number of contracts will leave the unrealized 
revenue to the City well below the annual threshold of $75,000 adopted by the Council 
in 2002. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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City ~anac$er 



Prepared by: Approved by: 

Ke in ohnson * ~ ~ k k -  Plannin & Development Director 

ATTACHMENT A: Historic Property Contract Savings & Unrealized City Revenue, 
2006 




